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Enclosed please find a copy of the Administrative Order on Consent (!\OC) and the Combined 
Complaint and Consent Agreement (Consent Agreement) fur the Panguitch Lukl.! si leo Please 
note that while the AOC will be dfeclivc immediately upon receipt. the Consent Agreement is 
subjl.!ct to a fOrly-day public comment period. The United States Environmental Protection 
Agency. Region 8 will notify you if comments are rece ived and discuss any changes that may be 
necessary to the Consent Agreement. If comments rt:ccivcd do not require modification to or 
withdrawal from the ugrccment. it will be submitted to the Regional Judicial Orficcr for 
incorporation into a Final Order. 
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If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me, or have your attorney contact me, at 
303-3 I 2-663 7. You may also contact Monica '-Ieimdal. Enforcement Officer, at 303-312-6359. 

Enclosun:s: 
I . Administrative Order on Consent 
2. Combined Complaint and Consent Agreement 
3. Certificate of Service 

Sincerely. 

// 

Wendy Silver 
Senior Attorney 

cc: Tina Artemis. EPA. Regionailicaring Clerk 
Tom Van Wyngarden. Chapman and Cutler 1.1.1> 
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UN ITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION 8 

IN THE MATTF:R OF': 

Polido l"i Corporation, Inc. 
5890 H ighw:'IY 95, Suite A 
Fori Moh.lve, AZ 86426 

Poli-Gold, L.L.c. 
134 1 Powell Drive 
Lake Havasu City, AZ 86406 

Vcronicll Polidori 
1889 Fainvay 
Lake l·b\,:lsU City, AZ 

Respo ndents. 
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) 
) 
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) 
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) 
) 
) 
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2UII DEC Il, MIlO: 09 
ADM INISTRATIVE ORDF:R ON CON~EJ'\T 

Docket No. CWA-08-2012-0002 
.;' :, ',;::-::1 (; '; .:. 
rei, ";:'! 

I. INTROIlUCTION 

This Administrative Order on Consc'nt (Consent Order) is entered into voluntarily by the United 
Statl:S Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and Respondents Polidori Corporation, lnc. (PCI ), Poli
Gold, L.L.C. (Poli-Gold) and Veronica Polidori (collectively, Respondents). The Consent Order 
concerns the implementat ion and completion of actions required to compensate for the environmental 
damages caused by alleged illegal discharges of dredged and lillmaterial at the Panguitch Lake Resort, 
loeatl!d adjacent to a portion of the southcm shoreline of Panguitch Lake in Garlield County, Utah (the 
Sile). 

The parties hereto agree that complete settlement or the civil liability for vio lations alleged herdn 
requires payment of a eivil penalty by Respondents, as set forth in the Combined Complaint and Consent 
Agrl!ement, Docket No. CWA-08-2012- . The parties hereto further agree that, upon the effectiw deW.: 
of this Consent Order, this Consent Order shall supercede Findings of Violat ion and Administrative 
Order lor Compl iance, Docket No. CWA-08-20 I 0-0029, which shall then be null and void and of no 
kg.1I effect. 

II . STATUTORV AUTHORITY 

The lollowing J-"JNDlNGS are madc and ORDER issued pursuant to the authority vested in the 
Administrator ofthc EPA by sections 308 and 309 of the Ckan Water Act (CWA), 33 U.S.c. §§ 1318 
and 1319. and delegatl!d by the Administrator to the Regional Administrator of EPA Reg ion 8, and 
redclegated by the Regional Administrator of EPA Region 8 to the Assistant Regional Administrdtor, 
Of"liCI! of Enforcement, Compliance and Environmental Just ice. The Consent Order is based on the 
findings of violation of section 301(a) of the C\VA, 33 U.S.C. § 131 1(a), which, among other things, 
prohibit!; the discharge of pollutants in to waters of the United Slales except as in compliance with 
section 404 orthe CWI\. 33 U.S.c. § 1344. 



III. PARTIES BOUND 

This Consent Order shall apply to and be binding upon the EPA and shall be binding upon 
Respondents and their heirs, officers, directors, agents, successors and assigns. The signatories to this 
Consent Order certify that they are authorized to execute and legally bind the parties they represent to 
this Consent Order. No change in the ownership or corporate status of Respondents or of the Site shall 
alter Respondents' responsibilities under this Consent Order unless the EPA, Respondents, and the 
transleree agree in writing to allow the transferee to assume such responsibilities. Additionally, 30 days 
prior to such transfer, Respondents shall notify the EPA at the addresses specified in paragraph 10 of 
section VI of this Consent Order. 

IV. STATEM ENT OF I' ARTI ES 

The following FINDINGS OF FACT AND OF VIOLATION a re made solely by the EPA. 
Respondents retain the ri ght to controvert in any subsequent proceedings, other than proceedings to 
implement or enforce this Consent Order or the Combined Complaint and Consent Agreement, Docket 
No. CWA-08-2012-0003, the val idity of the FINDINGS OF FACT AND OF VIOLATION. As such, 
and wi thout any admiss ion of liability, Respondents consent to issuance of this Consent Order and agree 
to abide by all of the conditions herein and agree not to challenge the jurisdiction of the EPA or the 
FI NDINGS OF FACT AND OF VIOLATION below in any proceeding to enforce this Conscnt Order or 
in any action under thi s Consent Order. 

V. FINDINGS OF FACT ANI} OF VIOLATION 

I. Respondent PCI is a corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Arizona. The address 
of the registered offi ce for PCI is 5890 Highway 95, Suite A, Fort Mohave, AZ 86426. 

2. Respondent Poli-Gold is a limited liability company organ i:£ed under the laws of the State o f 
Arizona. The address of the registered office for Po I i-Gold is 1341 Powell Drive, Lake Havasu City, AZ 
86406. 

3. Vcronic<l Polidori is an individual residing at 1889 fairway, Lake Ilavasu City, Arizona. 

4. Responden ts are engaged in construction and rea l estate development in Arizona and Utah. 

5. At all reievantlimes, Respondents owned, managed, operated on, and/or otherwise controlled 
property adjacent to a portion or tbe southern shoreline of Panguitch Lake located in the south half of 
section 4, Township 36 South, Range 7 West in Garfield County, Utah. 

6. The United States Anny Corps of Engineers (Corps) has determined that Panguitch Lake is a 
traditiona l nav igable water. 

7. In or about July 2007, Respondents, or persons acting on thei r behalf. began construction 
activities, without a pennit, that resulted in the discharge o f dredged and fill material to Panguitch Lake 
and its adjacent wetlands. The work involved: 
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a. Construction of a I 50-slip marina with in and along the shore of Panguitch Lake. The 
unauthorized work included construction of a coffer dam within Panguitch Lake, 
dredging and fill ing a significant portion of an existing marina and placement of riprap 
along the perimeter of the newly constructed marina, and 

b. Construction of a recreational vehicle park cons isting of lots intended to be sold to 

individual owners. The unauthorized work included the construction of a rock wall , 
discharge of fill and placement of riprap along a portion of the southern shore of 
Panguitch Lake. 

8. On May 1,2008, the Corps was notified by the Utah Department o f Environmental Quality 
(UDEQ) ora possib le CW 1\ violation on Panguitch Lake related to the discharge ofa large amount of 
iiI! adjacent to the lake. 

9. Following a May 12,2008, field visit, the Corps issued a cease and desist order on May 20, 2008, 
notifying PCI that the work performed in Panguitch Lake was a violation of the CW 1\ and requiring PCl 
to cease all work on the project unt il the violation is resolved. The Corps further requested that PCI 
providc any relevant information pertaining to the vio lation wi thin 30 days of the date of the cease and 
desist order. 

10. On May 22, 2008, a landowner at Panguitch Lake notified the Corps that fil! was being 
discharged into the lake in vio lation of the cease and desist order. The Corps contacted PCl's senior 
engineer, who eonlirmed he had received the cease and desist letter. Later that same day, the senior 
engineer informed the Corps that he had contacted PCI's on-site superintendent and instructed him to 
stop the fill work. 

II. On June 19,2008, Respondents' consultant replied to the Corps' cease and desist order and 
indicated that all work on the project had stopped. Respondents' consultant also submitted a permit 
applicat ion on behalf of the applicant, PCI, for an aftcr-thc-fact permit to "authori ze the construction 
activit ies adjacent to the shoreline or Panguitch Lake ... " The permit application indicated that grading 
\\ as substantially complete and that native on-site soil or rock had been dischargcd to 7.45 acres at and 
below an devation o f 8,218 fc!.!t at the siw, excluding the area surrounding the reconstructed marina 
whl.!rl.' ri prap was placed. According to information provided in the permit applicat ion, approximately 
50,600 cubic yards of fill were discharged at the site at and below an elevation of 8,218 feet. 

12. In response to Respondents' requests, the Corps conducted a field visit to the site on 
December 10, 2008. Based upon site observations and data co llected during that field vis it and a prior 
field visi t conducted September 26, 2008, the Corps concluded that the area at and below an elevation of 
8.217 fect would meet the criteria for wetlands under the 1987 Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation 
Manual and the Interim Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: 
Western MOllfltains, Valleys, and Coast Region. 

! 3. On March 17,2009, the Corps issued a letter to PCI summarizing its find ings from the field 
visits conducted September 26, 2008, and December 10, 2008. The Corps also recommended removal of 
all fill material at and below an elevat ion of 8,217 feet and restoration of the site to pre-disturbance 
cond itions. 
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14. On July 20, 2009, the Corps referred thi s case to the EPA for enforcement in accordance with the 
"Memorandum of Agreement Between the Department of the Army and the Environmental Protection 
Agency Concerni ng Federal Enforcement of the Section 404 Program of the Clean Water Act," dated 
January 19, 1989. 

15. On July 7, 2010, the Corps issued a letter in response to a June 2, 2010, letter from PCI that 
raised several concerns regarding the Corps' investigat ion of the alleged violations at the site. Among 
other issues, the Corps addressed ils jurisdiction under sec tion 404 of the CWA and expla incd that, to 
dctcrmim: the ordinary high water mark (OJ IWM) ofa water body, regulations and national guidance 
direct the Corps to first examine physical evidence of an OIlWM. In the case of Panguitch Lake, the 
Corps found there is a clear water Slain across the lake 's dam that demonstrates regular inundation to 
that level. Based on the water stain, the Corps determined that the OHWM is ten inches below the lOp of 
the dam. 

16. On June 30, 2010, a professional land survey was conducted on behalf of the EPA because of 
uncertainty regarding the elevation orthe top of the dam on Panguitch Lake. The su rvey established that 
thl: ckvation of the top of the dam is 8,220.46 feel above mean sea level. Therefore, the OI IWM of 
Panguitch Luke is 8,219.62 feet above mean sea level. 

17. The construct ion activi ties described in paragraph 7 of section V of this Consent Order resulted 
in discharges of dredged and fill material to Panguitch I ,ake and its adjacent wetlands. Panguitch I,akc 
and its adjacent wetlands provide numerous functions and values including aquatic and wildlife habitat, 
Ilood anenuation, groundwater recharge, recreation and aesthetics. 

18. The discharges described in paragraph 7 of sect ion V of this Consent Order were performed 
usi ng common earthmoving vehicles and equipment, which were operated by Respondents or persons 
:Icting 0 11 their behalt 

19. Respondents arc each a "person" within the meaning o f section 502(5) orthe CW /\,33 U.S.C, 
§ 1362(5). 

20. The discharged dredged and fill material referenced in paragraphs 7, 8, 10, II , 13, and 16 of 
section V of this Consent Order is and was at all relevant times "dredged material" and "fill material" 
within the meaning of33 C.F.R. §§ 323 .2(c) and (e), respectively, and "pollutants" within the meaning 
of sec lion 502(6) oflhe CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(6). 

21. Tht: vchicles and equipment described in paragraph 18 of section V of thi s Consent Order arc und 
were at all n:IL'van t times each a "point source" within the meaning of section 502(14) of the CWA, 
33 U.S.c. ~ 1362(14). 

22. Panguitch Lake and its adjacent wetlands referenced in paragraphs 7, 12 and 17 of section V of 
this Consen t Order arc and were at all re levant times "waters of the United States" wi th in the meaning, or 
33 C.F. R. § 328.3(a) and therefore "navigable waters" within the meaning of section 502(7) of the 
CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7). 
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23. The placement of dredged and fill material into Panguitch Lake and its adjacent wetlands 
constitutes the "discharge of pollutants" w ithin the meaning of section 502( 12) of the CW A, 33 U.S.C. 
§ 1362(12). 

24. Section·30] (a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311 (a), prohibits, among other things, the discharge of 
pollutants by any person into waters of the United States except as in compliance with section 404 of the 
CWA. 33 U.S.C. § 1344. 

25. Section 404 orIhe CWA, 33 U.S .c. § 1344, sels forth a permitting system authorizing the 
SCCfl!lary or the Army, acting through the ChicI' of Engineers of the Corps, to issue permits for the 
discharge of' dredged or filJ material into navigable waters, which arc defined as waters of the United 
Stutes. 

26. 33 C.F.R. § 323.3(a) specifics that, unless exempted pursuant to 33 C.F.R. § 323.4, a pemlit 
issued by the Corps is required for the discharge of dredged or Jill material into waters of the United 
States. 

27. Respondents are not and never have been authorized by a permit issued pursuant to section 404 
or the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1344, to conduct any of the activities described in paragraph 7 of sect ion V of 
this Consent Order. 

28. The w.:tivitics conducted by Respondents and their agents as descri bed in paragraph 7 of 
section V of this Consent Order violate section 301 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311. Each discharge of 
pollutan ts from a point source by Respondents into waters orthe United States without the requi red 
permit issued pursuant to section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, constitutes a violation of 
section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 131I(a). Each day ~he discharges remain in place without the 
required permit constitutes an additional day of violation of section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. 
§ 1311 (a). 

29. Thl.: removal ofdrcdged and fiJI material illegally discharged into waters orthe United States at 
the site and restoration and mitigation for the adverse impacts to, and the loss of the functions and values 
oC those waters can be achieved as a practical mailer through commonly used methods of construction, 
digging, revegetation, and best management practices. 

30. Activities to be carried oul under this Consent Order are remedial, not punitive, and are necessary 
to uchieve the CWA's objective " to restore and maintain the chemical, physical, and biological integrity 
of the Nation's waters,"!ls specified in sectionIOI(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.c. § 1251 (a). Restoration and 
mitigation are appropriate to address the actual and potential haml to water quality, aquatic habitat, and 
wildlife habitat. as well as other func tions and values, caused by Respondents' unpermitted activities. 

31. Respondents consent to the issuance of this Consent Order and agree to abide by all of its terms 
and conditions herein. Respondents agree not to challenge the juri sdiction of the EPA or these Findings 
of Fact in any proceeding to enforce thi s Consent Order. 
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32. These preceding FINDINGS OF FACT AND OF VIOLATION and the ORDER FOR 
COMPLIANCE below have been made after consultation and coordination with the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers, Sacramento District. 

VI. ORDER FOR COM l'LlANCE 

Based upon the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT AND OF VIOLATION, and pursuant to the 
authority vested in the Administrator orthe EPA under CWA sections 308 and 309(a), 33 U.S.C. 
§§ DIS and 1319(a), and by her delegated to the Regional Administrator, and rcdclcgated to the 
undersigned, it is hereby ORDERED and AGREED: 

1. Respondents arc enjoined from discharging any pollutant into waters of the United States unless 
such discharge complies with the provisions of the CWA and its regulations. 

2. Upon EPA approval orthe restoration plan and the mitigation plan required by paragraphs 4 and 
6 ors~ctj on VI of this Consent Order, Respondents shall conduct restoration and mitigation activities. ,IS 

mon: fu lly described below and in accordance with the schedules in the approved plans, for impacts to 
Panguitch Lakt:: and its adjacent wetlands resulting from the unauthorized discharges of'dredged and fill 
material at the site. Speeilically, Respondents shall: 

a. Conduct mitigation for impacted areas at and below 8218.1 5 feet at the marina at a ratio 
of one and a half acres to one acre. The general area is shown as Area A on Exhib it A; 

b. Conduct mitigation for impacted areas at and below 82 18.1 5 feet at the shoreline north of 
the existing lodge at a ratio of three acres to one acre. The general area is shown as 
Area B on Exhibit A and includes a lift station; 

l:. Remove all dredged and fit! material at and below 8218 .15 feet from lots 5 - 21 and 
northward and restore the impacted area to pre-impact conditions and grade. The general 
area is shown as Area C on Exhibit A; 

d. Remove all dredged and fill material from lots 26 - 32, construct the cui-de-sac such that 
its footprint is as depicted on Exhibit A, and restore lots 26 - 32 to their pre-impact 
conditions and grade. Lots 26 - 32 are shown on Exhibit A. 

3. All dredged and lillmaterial removal , as well as all restoration and mitigation activities, shall be 
conduct cd in accordance with an EPA-approved plan prepared by a consultan t experienced in shoreline 
and wetland rc:;toration and mitigation. The consultant also shall directly supervise all work performed 
pursuant to lhc plan. A statement of the consultant's quali fi cat ions, including professional resulllc and 
business references, shall be submitled (Q the EPA wi thin 21 calendar days of receipt of this Consent 
Ordcr. 

4. Within 60 calendar days of execution of this Consent Order, Respondents shall submit to the 
EPA for review and comment a plan, prcpared by the consultant referenced in paragraph 3 of section VI 
of this Consent Order, for restoration of the impacts to Panguitch Lake and to its adjacent wetlands, as 
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idcntilied in paragraph 2(c)-(d) of section VI of this Consent Order, resulting from the unauthorized 
discharges of dredged and fill material at the site (the Restoration Plan). 

5. Within 60 calendar days of execution of this Consent Order, Respondents shall submit to the 
EPA tor review and comment a conceptual strategy, prepared by the consultant referenced in paragraph 
3 of sect ion VI of this Consent Order, for mitigation of the impacts to Panguitch Lake and to its adjacent 
wetlands. as identified in paragraph 2(a)-(b) of section VI of this Consent Order, and resulting from the 
unauthorized discharges of dredged and fill material at the si te (the Conceptual Strategy). 

6. Within 180 days of the EPA's approval of the conceptual strategy identified in the immediately 
preceding paragraph, Respondents sha ll submit to the EPA for review and comment a plan, prepared by 
thl! consultant referenced in paragraph 3 of section VI of the Consent Order, for mitigation of the 
impacts to Panguitch Lake and to its adjacent wetlands, as identified in paragraph 2(a)-(b) or section VI 
of this Consent Order, and resulting from the unauthorized di scharges of dredged and fill material at the 
site (the Mitigation Plan). 

7. The Restoration Plan and the Mitigation Plan shall be prepared in accordance with .'~ 
Environmental Protection Agencv. Region 8 Clean Water Act § 404 Enforcement Removal/Restoration 
Plans and llabita! Mitigation/Monitoring Proposals," attached hereto as Exhibit B. The plans shall 
include: 

i1. A complete assessment of the impacts to Panguitch Lake at and below 8,218.15 feet 
above mean sea level due to Respondents' unauthorized discharges of dredged and fill 
material at the site; 

b. Locations orthe ex isting natural features and man-made improvements, including all 
surrace disturbance, fills, channel excavations, road crossings, culverts, structures and any 
other work , including a correspond ing map of these locations; 

c. With regard to the Restoration Plan, a detailed work plan and schedule for all of the work 
and activities to be accomplished, as specified in the plan, including the application for 
any required permits, providing for completion of all aspects or the work no later than 90 
days after the EPA approves the Restoration Plan, weather pennitting; 

d. With regard to the Mitigation Plan, a detailed work plan and schedule for all orthe work 
and ac ti vities to be accomplished, as spec ified in the plan, including the upp lication fo r 
any required permits, providing for completion orall aspects orlhe work no later than 
120 days after the EPA approves the Mitigation Plan, weather permitting; 

Grading, plan ting and monitoring plans, measurable cri teria for succcss of restoration and 
mitigation and provisions for proper disposal of any excess soils or other material 
generated during removal, restoration and mitigation; 

r. Detailed professional drawings orthe restoration and mitigation sitc(s). including plan 
and prolile drawi ngs with control elevations for current condit ions and proposed 
conditions; and 
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g. A description of all costs to complete the restoration and mitigation work, including the 
costs orall consultations, pcrmits, construction, monitoring, land acquisition, etc. 

8. The EPA will review the Restoration Plan, the Conceptual Strategy, and the Mitigation Plan and, 
with regard to each, approve iI, approve it with modifications or reject it with comments. If the EPA 
rejects the Conceptual Strategy. Restoration Plan or Mitigation Plan, Respondents shall, within JO 
cakndar days of receipt of the EPA's reject ion letter, submit n revised strategy or plan that corrects the 
deliciencies identified by the EPA 

9. Upon receiving the EPA's written approval ofeach plan, Respondents shall obtain all necessary 
permits 10 implement the plan and then commence all restoration and mitigation activities in accordance 
with the approved plan, including the time frames specified therein, and all granted pcmlits. 
Respondents shall demonstrate that ali necessary pennits have been grantcd by providing copies of all 
such permits, and any amcndments thereto, to the EPA within seven calendar days of issuance of each 
pemlit. 

10. A statement of the qualifications of the equipment operator who will conduct the restoration and 
mitigation activities, including business references, sha ll be submitted to the EPA within 21 calendar 
cluys of receiving the EPA' s written approval of each plan and prior to commencement of restoration and 
mitigation activities. 

II. This Consent Order is not a permit or an authorization to place or discharge dredged or fill 
material in waters of the United States. Respondents shall consult with the Corps at the address and 
tdephone number below to determine ifany work to be perfonncd pursuant to thi s Consent Order 
requires a pennit from the Corps under section 404 oflhe CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344. I(required, 
Respondents shall obtain such pennit(s) and provide a copy to the EPA pursuant to paragraph 9 of 
section VI of this Consent Order prior to initiating any work that is to be perfonned pursuant to this 
Consent Order. Any delays occurring as a direct result of the Corps' inability 10 timely issue a permit 
required in order to conduct the mitigation and/or restoration work shall not be deemed a failure to 
comply with this Consent Order. 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
St. George Regulatory Office 
321 North Mall Drive, Suite 1.·101 
St. George, UT 84790 
Telephone: 435-986-3979 
facsimile: 435·986-3981 

12. Respondents shall submit two copies of the plan, all notifications, and related correspondence 10: 

Monica Heimdal, 8ENF·W 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop St. 
Denver, CO 80202-1 129 

-8-



Telephone: 303-312-6359 
Facsimile: 303-312-6953 

A copy of the plan, allnotificat iol1s and related correspondence also sha ll be provided to: 

Wendy I. S il ver, 8ENF-L 
lJ,S . Environmcntal Protection Agcncy, Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop St. 
Denver, CO 80202-11 29 
Telephone: 303-312-6637 
Facsimile: 303-312-6953 

A copy of the plan also shall be provided to the Corps at the address noted in paragraph II of section VI 
of this Consent Order. 

13. In addi tion to the notification requirements set forth in paragraph 12 of section VI of th is Consent 
Order. aficr isslI(lIlce of any Corps authori:t..ation for restoration and mitigation work, Respondcnts shall 
submit all notifications and correspondence to the Corps in accordance with the terms and conditions in 
tht! Corps permit. 

I -L Any deJivcrables, conceptual strategies, plans, reports, specifications, schedules and attachments 
required by this Consent Order arc, upon approval by the EPA, incorporated into this Consent Order. 
Any noncompliance with such EPA-approved deliverables, plans, reports, specifications, schedules and 
attuchm(.;nts shall be dccmed a failure to comply with this Consent Order and subject to EPA 
cnJorccment. Any delays occurring as a direct result of the Corps' inability to timely issue a permit 
required in ordcr to conduct the mitigation and/or restoration work shal l not be deemed a failure to 
comply with this Consl..!nt Order. 

! 5. A lease, sublease or transfer of the site shall not relieve Respondents of any responsibility in the 
Consent Order unless the EPA, Respondents and the lessee, sublessee or transferee agree in writing to 
allow the lessee, sublessee or transferee to assume such responsibility. Additionally, at least 30 calendar 
days prio r to such [case, sublease or transfer , Respondents shall notify the EPA regard ing the details of 
the lease, sublease or transfer at the address specified in paragraph 12 of section VI of this Consent 
Order. 

16. Respondents shall allow, or usc lheir best efforts to allow, access by any authorized 
representative or the EPA or its contractors, the Corps, UDEQ, the Natural Resources Conservation 
Service and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, upon proper presentation of credentials, to sites and 
records relevant to this Consent Order for any of the following purposes: 

n. To inspect and monitor progress of the activities required by this Consent Order, 

b. To inspect and monitor compliance with thi s Consent Order, and 

t.: . To veri fy and evaluate data and other infonmllion submitted to the EPA. 
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This Consent Order shall in no way limit or otherwise affect the EPA's authority, or the authority of any 
other governmental agency, to enter the site, conduct inspections, have access to records, issue notices 
and orders tor enforcement, compliance or ahatemcill purposes or monitor compliance pursuant to any 
statute. regulation, permit or court order. 

17. This Consent Order shall be effective upon receipt by any of the Respondents. 

18. Issuance of this Consent Ordcr resolves Respondcl1ls' civil liabi lity for injunctive or other 
equitabll:! relief relating to the alleged violations and facts contained in this Consent Agreement. 

J 9. The EPA agrees 10 submit all notifications and correspondence to: 

Veronica Polidori, Registered Agent 
Polidori Corporation, Inc. 
5890 l lighway 95, Suite A 
Fort Mohave. AZ 86426 

and 

Thomas L. Van Wyngarden 
Chapman and Cutler LLP 
20 I South Main Street, Suite 2000 
Salt Lake City, UT 84111 

20. Any party hereto may, by written notice to the other parties at the addresses shown in paragraphs 
12 and 19 of section VIol' this Consent Order, change the address to which future notices shall be sent or 
the identities orthe persons designated to receive notices hereunder. 

:; I. I f an event causes or may cause delay in the achievement of the requirements of this Consent 
Order. Rcspondents shall notify the EPA orally as soon as possible and in writing within ten working 
days from the date Respondents first knew of such event or should have known of such event by exercise 
of duC' diligl.:l1ce, whichever is earlier. Respondents ' written notice shall speci fy the length of the 
anticipated delay. the cause(s) ofthc de lay, the mcasures taken or to be taken by Respondents to 
minimize the delay and u timctable by which those IllCmilm.::s will be or have becn implemented. 
NOli lication to the EPA pursuant to this paragraph o f any anticipated delay, by itself. shall not excuse the 
dday or the obligation of Respondents to comply with requirements and deadlines of this Consent Order. 
unless the EPA grants in writing an extension of the applicable requirement or deadline. 

22. lf Respondents demonstrate to the EPA's satisfaction that the delay or anticipated delay has been 
or will be entirely caused by circumstances beyond Respondents' control (or the control of any of 
Respondents' agents) that Respondents could not have foreseen and prevented despite due diligence, and 
thal Respondents have taken all reasonable measures to prevent or minimize such delay, the EPA may 
~xcus~ performance or extend the time for performance of such requirement for a period not to exceed 
the actual deluy resulting from such circumstances. The EPA's detennination on these matters shall be 
made as soon as possible, and in writing within ten working days, after the receipt of Respondents' 
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u.s. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY, REGION 8 

CLEAN WATER ACT § 404 ENFORCEMENT: 
REMOVAURESTORATION PLANS 

AND HABITAT MITIGATION/MONITORING PROPOSALS 

INTRODUCTION 

Th!.:si.,! guiddilll.!s arc designed to assist r(.!spond..::nts in the preparation or (!) removal and 

l"I.:SLO['llioll plans and (2) hahitat mi tigation and monitoring plans associatl.!u with pru,iC(;[S 
n:q uin.:J und\!r EPA i.KiministraLivl..! ord":fs. They haw ne1!11 dL'vclopl.!u rrom tht: 1.:_'pericllccs of 
Ill.my cas!.:s and <In: intended to be merely guidclillt:!s. In th<.: I.!vcnL or a conllici octw":I.:Jl an 
adll1inistmtiw o['(.h.:r and these guidelines. the administrative ordl.![ controls. 

For ans\v!,,!!'s to quest ions regarding the interpretation or thl.!sc guidelines or of acct.:ptabk 
n;stm~l!illn and mitigation I()[ a spl.!cilic project. please C011!<lct the person ,It EPA Region 8 ill the 
h.:t:hnic'll En!tln.:crm.:nL Program who is handling the cas!.!. 
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CLEAN WAT f<: R ACr ~ ~O~ I£NFORO:MENT: 

GEN lmAL C;UJJ)ELlNES FOR DEVlcLOI'MENT OF 
REMOVAL AN)) RESTORATION PLANS 

I. (;I(N I<:RAL INFORMATION 

The following guiddint.:s serve as general spccilicutions for preparing removal anli 
n.':sloraliol1 plans to n .. :mcdiHlc the unpcnnittl.!d filling of wetlands. As environmental conditions 
vary from silc to sitl.'. rn.x:isl' specifications will dcpcnd upon thl! cllvironml!llt conditions 
peclJlinr to thl.: sitl.! ill question. The silt: orth!.: wetland area to be restored. its biologic,il <Jnu 
physical characteristics. and tl1l.:: Jr..:vd of distu rhancc the wetland has (!xpcricnced will furthl..:f 
dcfinc the scope anu complexity of the restoration plan. In most cases, the lypcs or informatioJl 
listed bdow n.:pn.:scnt only the ininimum ~cquircd to Ii.mnulatc an ac(';cplablc removal and 
n.:stor<Hioll plan. 

\Vhcn these g uidelines are incoqlOrated into an EPA adminis trati ve o rder, the 
rec ipient of the order should o btain the approval of EPA's tc:chnic.tI represen tati vc Oil the 
case hefore dep:lrting fro m the gene!':!1 specifications outlined below. 

II. 11ECOMMENIlE il REMOVAL ANIlIU:STORATION PLAN FORMAT 

Thl.: rl.:J1loval am.! n.:storation plan should be pn..:sented llsing thL: Ji.)lIowing six suhsections 
wilcn possible. An explanation urthe kind oJ'inrormalion that should be included in each 
suhsl!ctioEl is pro" itled. 

I. Existing Physical Conditions 

1\. A survl!yed sile plan dl.!picLing prop<::rty houndaries. slrcets. buildings. 
waterbodies {with ordinary high water line indicatcd}. \\cLlands. FLMA 
IOO-ycar Iloodplain (irapplicable), areas orunpcrmith:d lill. dl.;v'llion 
contours. and other ground SurJ~ICG /catures at a SGul1.; no gn:atGr than 
''':·W'. This pJan shall indudG i.l cross-section view oj" thl.; sill.; which 
shows soilll(!rHhs. fill dcpths. <.tnd uver<.tge depth to groulldwall.!r <.tcrnss thl.! 
site. 

13. 1\ narratiw description or I..:xisling physical conditions. inclulling tilt.: arl.!<l 
urlhe sit\!: "rca oJ"unpcl"lllilted lilL c;.;isting wetlands (including thl.! typo.: s 
or vl;gGlation); thl.; soil types prL:Sl.!llt (including lht: types of llnpermiltl.!d 
Jill present): the hyllmlogic rGgimc o/"lhc sile; and other relevant 
information. 
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2. Pro pused Phys ical C onditions 

1\. lJsing the sitt.: plan descrihcd in Subsct.:tion 1.1\. as a basI..!. shm\l the C.'\<lC[ 

,m::as wher~ remedial uetivilies will OCellI' (e.g .. removal of" IiIL ro;;:pbcing 
dredged matt.: rial into ditches, elc.) . Indicate propost:d finished grades. 
expected ordinary high wat!.::r elevations. the IOcalion o/" propost:d 
plantings/seedings. and the location orall sediment and erosion control 
structures (e.g .. hay bull.!s. silt sc reens, t.:\(;.). This plan shull includ.:: a 
I.:ross-sl.:l.:t io!l view of the site which shows proposed soil depths and 
average depth to groundwater acros:; thl.! site. 

B. Provide a narrative description of the remedial work to occur. indudi!lg 
the methods and cqll ipml.!!lt to he l..!!l1ployed; how ul.:l.:ess t{) the sil(: to 
perrorm thl.: work will be obtained: huw eqllipllll.:111 will be brought to Ihl..! 
site: the locution ofthl.! ultima!!.! disposal site ror any rl..!mo\"cd lilt: hov,. lill..: 
\vork will progress across the sitl.!: U listing ofthl.! plant specit.:s to lx' 
secdedlplanted at the sile: the SOUfl.:CS orlhe plunt Jl1utl:riul [no/",: as a rult.:. 
lransplanting ofplanl stock will nol hI.! pcrmittt.:dJ: the plunting lllclhod(s) 
and sche!lll.! (1.1.:., physicullayou! urthe how plant mawrial will hI.! 
ins!<llkd): any !l1dhods to he used 10 minimize i.Hivcrsl.: impacts \vhik 
n.:mcdi:1l work is llllt!cnvay: the c,\pel.:t:;t! hyc.ir\)logic rcg.irne orthc sitl..! in 
its n:slOn:d t.:ondilion: and (lther rch.:vant information. 

C. Dt.:linl.!<ltl.! the <lrt!a(s) un tht.: sitc 10 be rcstored hy installation oj" llagging. 
scdimcntation and t::rosion control strw.:turl.:s. or olht.:r uppwpri,lte method. 
"I'his t.klincation shall rt.:prescnl the limit of wnstnlction activities sUt.:h 
thut no work shall occur beyond thost.: bounuurit.:s. 

3. Ac tu:!1 Resto red Phys ica l Cond it ions 

lhing IIlI.! site plan tkscribcd in Subsection!.1L as a base. show thc aclLlai 
physical conditions to I.!xist at Ill!.! site at Ihe cOl11plclion ol"grmling <It.: livities (i.e .. 
ilS "ils-built"" plan). including actual !inishcd gradt.:s and aU pertinl..!!1t ground 
surface I~atlln::;. This plan shall indudc a ct"()ss-sl.:ctiotl vit.:w oj" thl.!" site which 
shows <.\l.:tual soil deplhs and avenlge derth to groU!1dWult.:r across the site. This 
as-huilt plan shall be prepared and suhmitted prior [0 phtntinglsc.:t.:ding i.ll..:livitics . 

.. L Moni tol"ingl!Vlcasurcs or Succcss 

1\ . Normally. monitoring shull he pl:r!()f!l1ed midwuy through and ncar 11K' 
end ofthc lir::;! and sct.:ond growing scasons, tht:n annually near tht.: l:nd or 
each SLlI.:I.:t.:ssivc growing S(:,ISO!l Cor Ihe duration of"the [l:quirctl 
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monitoring period. Monitoring shall be per/()I'[lleu I(Jr a period or at kast 
live Yl.::ars due to the scope and complexity of'thc n::!l1ediul dl()rlS requirl.::d . 

B. 1\ monitoring plan shall incorporate a simple statistical approach Hl 
assessing relative success or failure orrcstorution 1.::000ms (I.!.g .. transects 
with sampling stations for measllring paramcters such us percent arl.!al 
COWl' in cach vegetative stralUlll). A permanent photographic rl.!coru shal l 
be included as part of the monitoring plan. 

C. Depending lIpon the scope and complexity or the remedial efl'm,. general 
criteria to mcasure success shull be determineu by EPA. Thl:se criteria 
shall be dirl.!ctly rdutcd to rel:slublishing thl! stru(;Lural components ofth.: 
aquati(; ecosystem being restored. A general provision shall be included to 

allow for co rrectivc action to be tuken. at the direction or EPA. should 
monitoring show that criteria for success arc not bl.::ing mel. 

J). A report shall be prepared and suhmitl.:d atler l:uch monitoring eV(!nl 
whidl dl:sc ri bcs the cnvironmental conditions at thl: site and assesses 
rehllive success or failllr..: of restoration elTons. This report shall includt.: 
photographic evid~nce as wdL This report shall identify any probkJ11~ 
discovered and rl:commcnd appropriate corrective uction to t.:llsure the 
success of restoration. 

S. Inspections 

Thc plan shu ll provide for inspections by EPA personnel uftl.!r inslallation orall 
sl.!dilllClltutioll and erosion control structurcs, alkr (;ompit.::lion or gmding. 
activities. alkr completion of initial plantinglsl:eding activities. and alkr 
monitoring indicates that the criteria lor success have hl:t!n attainL'd. 

(). Schcuulc 

1\ comprehensive schcdule integrating all removal. restoration. inspection. and 
monitoring activities as well as rcport/product suhmissions shall hi.! included. 
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CLEAN WATER ACT * ~o~ ENFORCI';M ENT: 

GI!:NERAL GUIIlELlNI, S FOR IlF:VJi:LOPMENT OF 
HABITAT MITIGATION AND MONITORING PROPOSALS 

I. GENERAL INFORMATION 

Submission oJ":.l mitigation and monitoring proposal as dcscribeo in thes!! guiddines \,\·ill 
not I"x: a sl!bstitul~ lor complete compliance with the Memorandum of Agrl.!clllcnl Bctw\.!cll the 
Environmental PrOll!l.:lion Agency and the Department of the /\rmy Concerning the Mitigation 
LHldcr tht.:: Clean Water J\l:t Section 404{b)( I) Guidclim:s dated November 7. 1989. whj(';h LOOk. 

clrcel on ]'\:bruury 7.1990. Thl!reforc. mitigation proposals will only be considen.!u iravoid:ll1cc 
and minimization hav\.! bccn full y pursued. 

Although all thl.! illllividual components pn.:sclltcu here may not be applicahh.: to CVC!)' 

project. a proposal shouhJ addres!'; each beading in the guidelines. Appendix A provides text .1Ilt! 
Jiglrn: formal guidl.!lines. 

II. I'LACE OF ivIITIGATION AND MONITORING PROPOSAL IN CLEAN 
WATER ACT ~ 41)~ PI': RMIT PROCF.DUIHc 

I. Inuividu:lIl)crmil 

Ir:.l respondellt is applying ti.)r ,111 individual permit from thl.! U.S. Army Corps or 
J:nginel.!rs (the ·,(,orrs··) and proroscs mitigation. it is prdi:rablc that a prelimilKlry 
mitigation and monitoring plan be submitted along with application materiuls. i\ detai!o.:d 
preliminary mitigation plan should generally not be cnmpJc t..:tl lIntil <.I limll jllrisdiclion:lI 
Jllap has hL'l.!n acc..::ptcd hy EPA. and thl..! arl..!u of Jill to hI..! miLigat..::d li.lI" hus hl.!en 
iJl.:llti!icd. The Jinal mitigation plan will usually bl..! suhm ittcd following thl..! public 
eommcnt period and Corps review oCtile pn.:liminary plan. 

2. Natiunwide Pennil 

I r a n:spondellt is requesting confirmution oj" a project· s qu;.di licatiol1 I{)r a Corps 
rw!iollwiul..! permit and rroposes mitigation. a detailed mitigation and monitoring plan 
must he suhmilled Wilh the rcqu..::st j()r conJirmHtioll. 

3. Final Suhmission 

The linal suhmission of all mitigation anu monitoring plans must he in a single 
JuclllllenL jt IllLJSt f;ontain up-lo-dale versions oral! materials. even ifothl.!r vcrsion~ 
\h!n.: sllhmilled e~lrlier in the aprlicalion prucess. 
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III. EPA/CORPS POLI CY 

In general. the goal o(hoth EPA and the Corps is to permit no nclloss of IlJllCliolls uno 
vaILH':S or wct!am! hahitat. Thl.; n.:plucc!llcnt ratio of wetland acreage required to at.:ilicvc this goal 
is typically alle"s! I: 1, and is oJh.:n higher. The atlainmcnt or replacement ['unctions and valw.:s 
und an acreage n.:plw';(,!I1lCnl ratio arc usually included in final success criteria assodatcd with the 
completion or a rcspondt!llt-pcrmittcc·s mitigution responsibility. 

V. SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDF.D M ITI GATION AND M ON ITORING 
PROPOSAL FORMAT 

The mitigation and monitoring proposal should be prcscnwd using the [allowing nine 
suhsections whl!Jl possibk:. Dl!tuilcd explanations orlhc kind oj' information thut should be 
included in cach subsection is provided in Section Vllx:low. 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPT ION 

1\. I ,ocution or Project 
I~. BrierSul11l11ury orOvl!rall Projl!ct 
C. Responsible Purties 
D. .Iurisoictional Arl.!m; to Ix:: Filkd 
E. Typl.::(s). Functions. und V .. lllll::S orthl.:: Jurisdictional Arl.!as 

2. COAL(S) OF MITI (;ATION 

I\. Type(s) or I labilal to be Cn..:atl.!o 
B. Functions and Values or Ilabiw.110 be Crcatc::d 
C. Time Lapse 

3. FINAL SUCCESS CRITERI A 

:\. Target Functions ano Valul.!s 
n. Targl:l J lyurologicaJ Rl:giml.! 
C. Target Jurisdictional Acreage to be Crcatl:d 

~. PROP()SI<:Il M ITICATION SITE 

A. 1 ,{)catioll and Si:l,e of' Mitigation Arl:a 
13. Ownl..!l'ship Status 
C. I 'xiSling Funclions un" Values of Miligalioll Arca 
D. Present an<.l Proposed Uses or Mitigi.ltion Area 
J:. Jurisdictional Delilll:ation (ifapplicablc) 
I:. Prl..!sent and Proposl..!d Uses or AI! Adjacent .Areas 
(;, Zoning 
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S. IMPLEI\''lENTATION PLAN 

1\. Rationak: f(Jr Expecting Implemt.:ntutiu/l SlH.;CCSS 

B. Responsibk: Parties 
C. Sitt.: Preparation 
O. Planting Plan 
!':. St.:bl.!du!.:: 
[C. Irrigation ['[an 

(i. As·Buill Conditions 

6. MA[NTF-NANCE DURING MON ITORING PERIOD 

A. Maintemmt.:.:: l\clivitic~ 
B. R'::spollsibl.:: Parti!..!s 
C. Schedule 

7. IVIONITORING l ~ LAN 

A. Perrormnnc.:: Criteria 
B. Monitoring Nli..!thods 
C. Annua[ Repnrts 
[). SdlCduh:: 

K. COMI'LETION OF MIT[GATION 

/\ . Notification ot'Complclion 
B. Corps Conlirm<Jtioll 

~. CONTINGENCY MEASURES 

;\. Initialing Prot.:edurcs 
H. Alternative Locations for ('olllingcrH;Y Mitigation 
C. i'tlllding Moo ilanislll 
D. Res pollsibh.: Panics 

VI. DETAILED RECOMMENDED M ITIGATION AND MONITORIN(; PROPOSAL 
FORMAT 

Detailed inrormation to be included in each subsection orlhc mitigation and monitoring 
pruposal is presl.!l1tcd bdow. Til.: nim: suhsections shoulJ be prccL:dcd by <.1 one-page SUlllJ11U1) 
Il flhe l"I,:por! contents. 
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I. I'RO.mer IJESCRIPT ION 

A. LOI.:alion or Project 

! . I )l!~cri he 
.., Provide: 

a. Road lllap with sill.! 10catiol1 clearly indit.:uli..:d 

b. lJSGS quad map with projt!ct site olitlinL:s (deaf phOlI..lCOP) 
is acceptable) 

13. BricrSummary orOvf.!rall Project 

In on\! or two paragraphs. dc!:>cribe thl.:: overall project (notjllsl the 

jurisdictional an!a to be filled). IncJud(.: type ofdcvc!opmcnt and project 
size. 

C. Rl.!sponsibk Punics 

Prnvidc the nal11c(s). titic(s). addrcss(L:s). and phone number(s) orthi.! 

applicant(s)l . induding the contact pl!fSon(s) if the apr! iC<Ul t is a comp;,my. 
and of lhc preparer(s) ofthl: mitigation rlan. 

[). Jllrisuictiona! Arcus to be Filkd 

Provide <I full-size topo base map with v(.! riJicd Corps/l:YAjurisJictiollal 
<.In.:a(s) :mJ area(s) or proposed fit! outlinL:s. (S~e Appendix /\ Ji.)r Illap 
f()rmal inlormation.) 

I:. Type(s). hlllctions. and Values of the Jurisdictional An.:as 

I. I'ype: c.g .. seasonal wetland. vo..:rnul pool. rn::shwutcr marsh. playa. 

ele. 

'l FUllctions ami Values 

Formal procelfun.:s to assess functiolls and values or \ ..... etlands have 
not yet been adopted. Therefore, to assist in eV<.lluation or till! 

project. a knuwlcogcabll.! prorcssional should pwvidl.! a sUlllmary 
or the functions and values or the wetland [0 bi.! filled. Any 
jurisdictional areas other than wetlands should ulso be ussessed It)]' 
Illllctions and val LIeS. I:xamples or features to be atldn::ssed <.! I"l!: 

Ih,,: "applic:lll!"" n.:lcrs 10 till.: penni! 'Ipplicant. who wit! in most instances be th(.: 
rcsp<lndcnt . 
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W;JtCf Qualitv 

grOLl!lU wuter 

rccharge/J i schargl: 
1100u storage 

othl..!r 

!!;Jhitat 

ruri..!lthrl..!atl..!l1l..!u/l..!ndungcrcd spl..!(.;il..!s 

known or prohable wildlife lise 
pll.lnt communities 
compklc species l ist 

known or prohable fish. shclllish. and mlU~l!ic vertdmlle 
use 
othl:r 

g~crcatiol1al Usc 
1l00H;onsumptivc (e.g .• hird\vatching. \valking) 

conslJmptive (e.!.g .• lishing. hunting) 

2. (;OAL(S) () V I\ ·IITIGATION 

rllis n.:li.:rs 10 thl.! It)ng~tl.!r!ll goals. which Illay not bl! r(.;<.u;ht.!Lilllllij SOI11('; YI.:i1rs alh.:r LlK 

applicant's mitigation n.:sponsihilitil!s have.! he.!en complde.!d. 

!\. Typc(s) of' [labitat to bl! Cn.:ute.!u 

I r out~or-kind. prcse.!l1t rational\.!. (Rl.! ji:r to Subsection 1 .E.I ahove.) 

B. Functions and Valul!s of Hahitat to hi.: Creatt.!u 

lde.!ntit~·. ul!scribc. and provide location or any local n:j(.:rl.:nce si!<.:- if 
diJ'll:['<.:-n! rrol1l1ilL' wl.!t!and ttl 01.: lilk:d. (RI.!li;r to SuhSL'(.;lioll 1.1:.~ .• 100\1.: .) 

(.. Time Larso 

Describl..! how many years it is likdy to lakl..! t!.) r th!; long-lenn goal habitat 

to l.iL"wlop. 

3. 1'11'1,\1. SUCCESS C RITER IA 

Tllesl..! an; the critt.:rlu that un.! proposed by Lilt.: applicant ror Corps approvnl and are llsed 

10 detcrm i nL! com pkl ion (1 r pt.:rmi Ilt.:i..!' S III itigation rcsponsi hi I it ies. hi! Ii lImcrll () r these 

(.;riteria should indicat..; Lhm the mi t igat ion ur(.;u is progr...:ssing well toward th.: h<.lbil<ll 
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t}-pe. J'1l1H.:tilH1S. and values which constitutc thl! long-tl!rm goal orthis mitigation. I'or 
lllilig~ltion piantings. final success criteria will not be cotlsidt:red to haw bt:ell Illel lmtif L\ 

minimum of two ycar::; after all hlllmm support (e.g .. irrigation. replanting. rmknt control. 
:.IIlJ krtilii'.ation) has cl.!<lscd . Major factors to be considered arc: 

I\. Target Functions and Valucs 

wildlife species 
percentage vegetation cover and/or density 
nrproximatc plant height criteria (shrubs <.Inti trees) 
plant and Jllimal species Jiversity 
root c.kvt!lopmellt 
canopy stratification 
other quantifiable lllL:asurL:S of success 

B. rargcl Hydrological Regime 

('. 

soun.:c(s) of water 
Jischarge point(s) 
:.lr~<I(s) alkcted by seasonal f100ding 

Jin.:ction{s) of flow 
size (and mup) or watershed 

Tar"Cl Jurisdiction·al i\cre(.l."c To Be Created , 0 

Where applicabk. a rorllla! wetlands delineation mllst be sLlbmitted f()r Corps 
approval us a part of the final success <..: ritl:ri a. 

•. I'IWI'OSED MITIGATION SIT f: 

t\. Locution and Size or Mitigotion A.rca 

I. Describe locution. including rationale Illr choice. I I' ufTsitl.:. 
indicate distance rrom project site. 

2. Provide tho.:: 1()llowing maps: 

a) full-size copy ofLJSGS quad mar with the mitigation 
lo<..:ation outlined 

b) road map Illarkt:d with the site location 
<..:) hase wpo Illap with the proposed mitigation area outlined 

and acrcag~ indicated. (See App(,!ndix A. ror figure !(lrln<.lt 
inrormation.) 

PagelOoflS 



I~. OWlll..:rship Slatus 

I. Indil,;uh:: who pn.:sl..::ntly o\vns th.: mitigation sitc. jfallv tl\\!lcr is 
ditkrcnt from th\! p\! rmit ~lpplicunl(s). d\!scribe and c,-':plain thc 
avail.lbility orthl..: propt:rty. Dcscrih\! und \!.xpluin UIlY C(lSl..::nH':l1ts or 
encrnuchnH.:nb that the property curries. II' any or the rrorerty is 
JocatL::d on rublic land. describe and cxp!:.!in what ~l!Tan!!.ements. if 
Hily . haw been discussed wi th ril(: managing agcm:y. ~ 

Illdicutc I..:xpeclCd O\vnershir o/"Ihc mitigation ,m.:a rol!owing 
I..:ompklion o!' lhc mit igation rroject. J(kntil"y who will hi: 
rl..:sponsibll..: for long-term management and protection ol"ll1c areu. 
Dcscrihc <inti exrlain whut i r any long-term managcllll:nl rJan has 
hl..:el1 prcpan.:d for Ihe area. Ifan entity other thall the apriiL:(!nt \"iIJ 
:lssume management responsibilities follov .. ing L:llmpklion (,rthe 
mitigation projt:ct. dl:scribc and !.!xpluin any signed. wriw.:n 
agrel.;mentlhat Ih(: munager willmunage the an::a in L:tll1formanc<.: 
with goals or the mitigation. Indud!.! copies of any wrilt<:n plans nr 
agreements. 

3. Jmlicatc Whall.!1l1ilY. ifany. L:olllrols \\'at<:1' 00\\,"10 ur from th!.! sitl.:. 
kkntil'y and dl.!scribl: the party WilD is 10 maintain \\'\\\1,.:1' controJ 
SlrLlClllres. D~scribe and explain what arrangCll1l.!nl"'; have h::en 
m'J(.ie to guarantee arpropriatc waler !low in th\! mitigutioll area 
during and <.lIter the !.!slabl ishment or the rnitigali~)!1 pro,iect. 

C. Exisling. Functions and Valut..:s of Mitigation I\re<..l 

(Rdi.:r to S!.!L:tion i.E. abov!.!.) 

D. Pr!.!s':J11 and Propos\!d Uses of Miligatio!1 I\rL:<.I 

Ihidly tks<.;ribe all knowll pr!.!senl and prop(lsl.!d uses oftllc rnitig<llion 
an:u. DiscLlss non-nali w landscapt..: plantings. pipelinl.;s. powl:rlinL:s. 
mads. dislancl! and location or nearcst structures. if any. !.!tc .. 011 th<: 
propl!rt)' L:on laining the mit igation site. 

I~. ,lurisdictional D!.!lillcation (i r applicahle) 

Dl!s.:rihe any jurisdictional ar!.!as that ar!.! already pr\:s!.!111 on the miligatioll 
sik. Provide a topo base map or thl! sill! \·'lith jurisdictionaJ ar~<Is (and an~ 
proposed till) indicated. Describe thl! rrobable J"lIllIn: of thl.: rnitig;lIitl!1 
area as habitat if left undisturbed. 
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F. Pn.!sent and Proposl:d Uses of All Adjacent An!.!s 

Bril!!ly dcscrih~ all known prc!'lcnt and proposed uses or all propl:rty 
sharing a common border with the property containing the mitigation. 

(i. Zoning 

(Jiv~ all present and rropo!'led zoning d!.!signations for the mitigation siLl: 
and adjoining properties. including city. county. BC'DC dc. 

5. IMPLI':MI':NTATION PLAN 

A. Rational!.! for Expecting Implcmentation Success 

May rdl!r to pn;violls relevant cxperit.:nce or appl icant and/or 
impk:mcntutio!l consultant or to oIhcr similar and succ~ssrul mitigation 
projects. Includt.: hydrology and soils information. 

B. Rt.:sponsibk Parties 

Provide the name(s). title(s). addre:-is(es). and phone nllmhers ol' thc 
person(s) rcsponsible lor implementing the mitigation project. 

('. Site Preparation 

1. lkscribl..! plans for grading. hydrologic changes. watt.:r t.:()ntrol 
s\rUl;Lun!!'l. soil amcndl11l.!nts. crosion control. hank swbilil'.ation. 
I.!qUiPllll:!lt and prot.:l..!durl:s Hl he used. site acct.:ss l:ontroL I..!tc .. as 
<.trplieahk. Include a dl:seription oJ'...:.\otic vq~dation contrul 
tl!l:hniqucs. planting hole l!xcavmioll tlwthods (e .g .. auguring. hand 
digging). and thl! sil'.l! of till! planting hok: (l!.g .. twiel! size of 
container). 

2. Provide hase lOpO maps showing planlll.!d !'lite pn: paration. (St.:1.! 
Appendix A ror Ji gu!'1: forrnat information.) 

.) . Provide n.!pr~$CnlaliVt.: croS!'l·sl!clions ()fthc mitig<'ltion Sill! \ .. iilt 
o,;k:vat ions und sCidc indicat!.:d. 

-4. Provide thl! name. lille. address. and pholll: llul11hcr or tilt: po,;rsoll 
sllpl!rvising or providing biological monitoring during gr:luillg 
uetivities. 
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D. Plan ting Plan 

I. 

J. 

Bri(.!/ly d(.!scribl..! the planting plan und methods 

Provide a whle ofspccies 10 he piantl..!tL induding Jlumbers. 
spacing, Iypl..!s of rropagliles, POI sii'.cs. CIC. 

Indicatl..! the soun.:c-locall.!' or secJs, plant plugs, L:Llltings. L'tc. 

-I. Show planting and species locations on a hasl.! [OrO map. (SCI.: 

Appt:ndix I\. for figllrc format information.) 

5. If tr.:mspinnting is to be dOlll..!, describe tilt: storagl..! ml..!thod ~lJ)d 
Juration . 

6. Describe any cxpe;;tcd volunteer n'.ltiv;; reveget;ltion that is 
included in mitigmion planning. 

E. Sd1l..!Jull..! 

Provide <.1 schedule in the form or a Icgiblc Ilow chart shov.:ing intl.!lH.led 
timing of sit I.! prepurution and plantings. 

I:. Irriga tion Plan 

I. I)cscribe irrigation mclhod(s). cstinHltl!d li·cqul.!llcy. and ,llllount 
during dry months. 

1 Indicate water souree(s) Ii.)r the mitigation arl..!<l. 

3. Sho\v the piannl.!d irrigation systl.!ll1 and/or watcr !low on hasl.! toro 
(muy bl.! includl:d on the planting plan map). 

(i. :\s-Built Conditions 

Thl.: plan should specify thai tIll: applicant will: 

I. Submit a report 10 I-:PI\. within 6 wl.!cks of the l:Ompktioll orsitc 
pn.:paration and planting, describing thl: US~bllilt status orthe 
mitigation project. rravoidanl:e is incorporated in\() dev(:]0pl11l.:J)t 
projecl dc:>ign. des;;ribe thl! as-built status ofth(.! devclllpmcl1t 
project. including any deviation:> from the original plan ill the 
vicinit)' or. or thaI will a/lcct.jurisdictioJlaJ an.:a(s). Submit 
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s~paratt.:: reports for gruding and planting work if not \;OmpleLeu 
within six weeks or each other. 

Provide topn maps showing us-built wntours ofth<.: milig<ltion 
urCa. Indicat!.! the location or plantings and any other install'ltions 
or structures. 

6. MAINTENANC~: DURING MONITORING PERIOD 

A. Maintl.!nancc Activitics 

Ikscrine planned maintenance act ivities. including irrigation system 
inspection. plunL replacemellt, weeding. water struc.:ture inspection. 
li.:rtili/.ation. erosion contro l. herbivore protection. trash n..:movaL and/or 
<lny uther such activities. 

B. Responsible Partics 

Identify the persons/entitil.!s responsible ror financing and carrying out 
maintcnance activities. including names. Litles, addresses. ;Jl1d phone 
nlllnbers. 

('. Sl.:heduk 

11rovidt.:: a tahle showing tht.:: schedule or rnaintt.::nance insp.:ctions. 

7. MONITORING PLAN 

.A... Per!{)ftlli.11K': Criteria 

Provide y.:arly target criteria to O(! mel. as appropriate. based on 
r.:asonubly-paccd progr.:ss to\vard [ina! SlICC!'!SS criteria. (Reli::r to Section 
III. ) 

I~. Monitoring Methods 

I. Describe the monitoring mt:thods. If using sampling methods. 
include sample siz('!s. statistic'll j lIsti licatioll t()r S'llll pi i ng regi Ill\.!. 
ilnd data analyses to he performed. Ifappropri<.tLe. include 
aSSeSSllll!ll t oi'n<lLural population growth by wrgt:L specks. 

1. Provide samples orall proposed data sheets. 
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:;. Photo~ sh"lll ht! takt.!11 Juring each monitoring p!.!riod. The) slw!l hI..' 
wk!.!tl from the same vantage roint and in the same din.:etion every 
year. and shull rcl1cct mutt.!rial discLisscu in tht.! monitoring. n.:rort. 
Wht.!11 perct.!nl cover t.!still1ates arc made oi" herbaceous vcgcl<nioll. 
photographs shall bl.! l"lkt.!n or s<.l!llpli ng quadrants. -

C. I\l\l\ual Roports 

I. J\nnual repo rts shall be submitted which prt.!st.!11! monitoring 
rt.!suils. They shall assess both attainment oi" yeurly ti.lrget criteria 
and progress toward final SliCCt.!SS criteria. 

J\nnual rt.!ports shull inclutk tht.! following: 

<l. /\ list of llamt.!s. lilies. and companies ofull persons who 
prl.!part.!d the contl:nt orthc annual reporl :md rarticipalo..:d ill 
monitoring activities for thut )leur. 

b. A !.!opy 01" any Corps pennil attached. Spt.!ciul Conditions 
and any subst.!411elll Leners of Modi lieiJIion shall bl.! 
ilH.:llIded as an appl.!ndix. 

t:. Analysis 01"<111 qllamitntivc monitoring lhila. 

d. Prints or good qllalily rhotocopics ~)f all includl:d 
monitoring photographs. 

e. Maps idl.!ntifying monitoring arcus. trunsl.!t:ts. phll1ting 
zones. ctt: .. as appropriate. (Sct.! Appt.!ndix J\ fl.)!" liglll\.' 
format inlormation.) 

.J. Copil.!!"> or all field daw shl.!l.!ts shull be available for Corps revil.!\\ 
as lll.!cl.kd. 

D. St:hI.!duk 

Sinel.! planting and/or sitl.! modiJication may not ot:Cllr when planlll.!u. 
monitoring <lnd pl.!ri"onmll1ce t: ritl.!ria shall be tied to the <It:tLlul 
impkm~ntalion date rather than to pn.!dt.!lermint.!u years (c.g .. the first 
annual rt.!port shall ht.! delivt.!rl.!d on (month. duy) oftht.! yeur Ji.)IIO\ .... ·ing lil", 
lirst growing Sl.!ason alit.!r planting.) 
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S. COMPLETION OF MITIGATION 

t\. Notification oJ'Comp!l.;tion 

When tht; initial monitoring period is COmpll!l(.;, and irtht; applicant 
belit.:ws that the final success criteria have been mel. tht! upplicant shall 
notify the Corps when th\.! annual report that uocul11cnts this compktion is 
sunmiut:d. If it is appropriate hl..:rl.!, a Cllrn::nt jurisdictional delineation DC 
the crcatl..!d wetland arcus should be submitted with the rcport. (This 
ddini.,:,nion shall be accompanied by legiblt.: copies oral! field data !'ihcl.;(s.) 

B. ('mrs ('onlirmat ion 

Following n::ccipt or the rCpO!1. the Corps may rcquin; a silC visit to 
con linn tht;! cOlllpktion urthe mitigation effort and <Illy jlJrisdictillnal 
delineation. 

9. CONTINCENCY MEASURES 

A Initiating I)roccuurcs 

Iran annual performance crit~ri()n is 1l01ll1Cl for all or l.Illy portion orlh~ 
mitigation proj~ct in <lily year. or if the tinal success criteriu are nut 1111.!\. 

the pennitlcc shall pn.:par~ <.111 analysis of'the cause(s) or 1:lillire and, if 
d..::termined necessary by the Corps, propose remedial u(.;tion fur approval. 

I~. Alternative Locations lor Contingency Mitigation 

Indicute speciJk altcrnativ~ mitigation locations that may be used in tilL' 

cvcnt that mitigation l.:anllot be succ~ssrulJy achi~vt:d at the intclKied 
mitigation site. Include current owm:rship information J(.lr un)' oITsitl.: 
alternative locations. 

C. Funding Mechanism 

Indi(;HtI..: what funds will be available to pay for planning. implementation, 
ant! monitoring of any contingency proced ures that may be n.:qLlin.:d to 
achkve mi ligation goals. 

D. R~sponsib k Parties 

List names. addresses. and phon!.! numbers ofpcrsons/cntili!.!s r!.!sponsibk.: 
for implementing und monitoring conting<';!1cy procedures. 
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AI'I 'f:NDIX A - FORMAT INFORMATION 

,.\. Text Formal Nol es for Mitigation/Monitoring Proposals, As-Built R eports, anti 
Annual Reports. 

1. The ('orps !ill! number and the date of thl! report should hc incllllh!d in tith.:-p<lgc 
reuding. 

2. inc.:iw.h.: a distribution rag.: listing 11<lmt;s. titles. comp<ll1icsiugcm;j.:s anti i.l(jdrcsscs 
of al! pcrsonsiagcl1cics receiving u copy or the report. 

B. List of Fig u res to be Suhm ittctl 

(/'lIgt! 1I11l1.H!t.'liolll1/1l11herx in pare11lheses indim/(! locu/io/1 (~jjiglll't' ret/II"s! in 

{{niWh/let! maline. For n:(-ol11f11endedji)!.lIrefhrll/lI/s. refer to Sec'lion (( 'J he/011'.) 

1. i\;litigation and Monitoring Proposal 

.. 1. Jurisdictional An;as and Proposed !-'ill on Pmjl..!(';! Sill! (p. 8. I./J.j (outlin-.:s 
and acn.:agc!'i indicatl!d.). 

h. Location <lnd Size or Mitigation Area 

lLS.G.S. quad map 0). 10 . .1..-1.2) 

road map (p. J(), -1 . ..1.1) 

- toro mar (jJ. if) . .1 . ..1.1) 

..:, JlIrisdi":liunall\rcas and Any Proposed Fill on Mitig<ltion Site (p. II .. /./:'.) 

d. Mitigation Site Preparotion (p. 12. 5.(2) 
(h"lse topo mup showing preparation plans) 

..:. )lbnting Pbn (p. 13.5.1),-1) 

plall view ofbasc loro 

.- J'l.!prl.!scntati VI.! ..:ross-scctiuns 

r. Irrigutillll Plan (p. 13. 5.F3) (may he on plmlling plan !Oro ) 
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As-Built R~port {fl. 1-1,5.(,'.1) 

a. Fin~d site contours 

b. Plantings us inslUlI\!J 

c. Figure Funu,,' No'es 

1\11 maps and plans submitt~d shall be legihh:! and indlld~ tille. datl: of 
prt:paration. and date or submission. 

i\ lcgl..:nd shall hI.! providt:d if symbols. paltcrns. or scr~ens arc used on the mup or 
plan. 

Ifcolors at\:! Llsed \() indicate areas on the original map. color copil..:s shall h~ 
im::lmkd in ull copies ofthl! report subrnilled to the Corps. 

Indicate North and providl! a scale and datllll1 (i rappropriatc. i.e. tidal daw). 

Scale and oricntation shall be tht! sam!! ror ull maps. except for dl!wil sections. 

Buse lOpO maps (i.c .. for jurisdictional arcas. locution and size of mitigulion ar-.:as. 
mitigation sit<.: pr-.:parntion plans, planting plans. irrigation plans. and as-built 
r-.:ports) shull b(.; rull-siz~ (r im:h - 100 ICl.!t or ll.!ss. r indl "'" 200 l<:e1 ror vcry 
larg~ pn~jl.!cts). 

lJS(iS qUold maps Sh;:lll he I"ul! -sii'.<.: and full sl:ak (may bc photocopies. il'l:k:ui'ly 
legihle). 

NOTE: ReJwxd copio.:s or maps shall be bound with all dOl:umcnts to Jac il itatl.! n:vicw by 
'Klvisory agl.!ncies. For Corps n:vicw. at kast two sets or full·sized copies shall 
aCClHllrXHlY mitigation and monitoring proposal. and one sd shall accompany I.!ach Hllnuai 
r~port. 

D. S\:hcdulc 

When submitting the mitigation and monitoring plan. the applicunt shall indicate thl: 
month and dal(;! on which thl.! Yl.!arly report will bl! deJiwr\!d . [r plan invol ves plunting. 
this dato.: should ho.: made between growing Seasons for the primary plants so that timely 
decisions call be made ahout any modifications to thl! plan. 
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CERTIFICA n ; O~' SERVICE 

I certify that ol1lhe date noted below, J sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, a copy of 
the foregoing COMBINED COMPLAINT AND CONSENT AGREEMENT 10: 

Polidori Corporation, Inc. 
5890 lIighway 95, Suite A 
Fort Mohave, AZ 86426 

Pol i-Gold, L.L.C. 
1341 Powell Drive 
I.ake lIavasu City , AZ 86406 

V(.!f()nica Polidori 
1889 Fairway 
I.ake Havasu City, AZ 86406 

The original and one copy were hand-delivered to: 

Tina Artemis 
Regional I-Iearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA Region 8 (RC 
1595 Wynkoop Street 
Denver, CO 80202-1129 

iJ.!tLl!11 
Date 


